
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL 

 JULY 10, 2017 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
A meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held on 
Monday, July 10, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, 
WI, in the Council Chambers.  
            

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  - Mayor Kip Kinzel 

 
2. MOMENT OF SILENCE  

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
4.        ROLL CALL:  Present – 

 
 
 
 

Common Council – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members  
John Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick 
Verhaalen, Mitch Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, Mike 
O’Keefe 
 

5. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES* - June 26, 2017 
 
7. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS** Comments from citizens on a 

listed agenda item will be taken when the item is addressed by the Council.  At this time 
individuals can speak on any topic not on the agenda for up to 5 minutes, time 
extensions at the discretion of the Mayor.  No action can be taken on items not listed 
except as a possible referral to committees, individuals or a future Council agenda item. 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
* A. Consider issuance of a Transient Entertainment License to Rainbow Valley 

Rides, Inc. for the Ozaukee County Fair on August 2 (1:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m.), 
August 3, 4 & 5 (10:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m.), and August 6, 2017 (10:00 a.m. to 
7:00 p.m.) and the request to waive the requirement for a Clean Up Bond as 
requested by Agricultural Society; and action thereon 

  

* B. Consider agreement with Short Elliot Hendrickson Inc. for design, construction 
administration and inspection services associated with the communications 
monopole; and action thereon 

 
* C. Consider request of the Friends of the Cedarburg Library to waive liquor liability 

insurance requirement for event to be held on July 13, 2017; and action thereon 
  
* D. Consider payment of bills for the period 06/23/17 through 06/30/17, transfers for 

the period 06/24/17 through 07/07/17, and payroll for the period 06/18/17 through 
07/01/17; and action thereon 

Page 1 of 65



*** E. Consider License Applications; and action thereon 
    
   1. Consider approval of new Operators License applications for the period 

ending June 30, 2018 for Antoinette L. Dunst, Vita Marie Ferrara, Jennifer 
Ann Jahn, David R. Kellner, Alexander J. Knaus, Robert M. Nash, Jamie 
Nevins, Andrea J. Patnode, and Lauren Siegesmund; and action thereon 

 
 2. Consider approval of renewal Operators License applications for the 

period ending June 30, 2018 for John O. Baker, Dixie K. Borzick, Evan N. 
Bray, Lois M. Bray, Richard L. Carlson, Benjamin S. Clithero, Edward J. 
Dettloff,  Deborah A. Dunne, Ronald R. Ernst, LeRoy C. Haeuser, Lori A. 
Haeuser, Mark Hilgendorf, Madeline Houdek, Gregory J. Jourdain, Robert 
A. Kitzerow, Christine A. Krause, Craig E. Lowdermilk, Neal Maciejewski, 
Niall M. McCue, Jacki L. Moegenburg, Sheridan P. Riley, Richard J. 
Roden, Robert J. Roden, Kyle D. Scheithauer, Kari S. Schwartz, Thomas 
J. Shippen, and Warren D. Seifert; and action thereon 

   
9.       REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
* A. Administrator’s Report 
* B.  Building Inspector’s Report – June 2017 
   
10. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
** A. Comments and suggestions from citizens 
 B. Comments and announcements by Council Members  

C. Mayor’s Report  
 
11.     ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
 

It is anticipated the Common Council will adjourn to closed session pursuant to State 
Statutes 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchasing of public properties, the 
investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business whenever 
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, more specifically, to 
consider a Developer’s Agreement regarding the redevelopment of the Amcast 
property.  Approval of 05/08/17 closed session minutes.  

 
12.     RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 

The Council reserves the right to reconvene to open session to take action on matters 
discussed in the closed session. 

 
13. Consider Developer’s Agreement for the Amcast property; and action thereon 
 
14 ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 65



Individual members of various boards, committees, or commissions may attend the above meeting.  It 
is possible that such attendance may constitute a meeting of a City board,  committee or commission 
pursuant to State ex. rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553, 494 NW 2d 408 (1993).  
This notice does not authorize attendance at either the above meeting or the Badke Meeting, but is 
given solely to comply with the notice requirements of the open meeting law. 

 
 
* Information attached for Council; available through City Clerk’s Office.   
** Citizen comments should be primarily one-way, from citizen to the Council.  Each citizen who wishes to 

speak   shall be accorded one opportunity at the beginning of the meeting and one opportunity at the end 
of the meeting.  Comments should be kept brief.  If the comment expressed concerns a matter of public 
policy, response from the Council will be limited to seeking information or acknowledging that the citizen 
has been understood.  It is out of order for anyone to debate with a citizen addressing the Council or for 
the Council to take action on a matter of public policy.  The Council may direct that the concern be placed 
on a future agenda.  Citizens will be asked to state their name and address for the record and to speak 
from the lectern for the purposes of recording their comments. 

*** Information available through the Clerk’s Office. 

 
UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO 

ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (262) 375-7606 

E-MAIL:  cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
07/06/17 ckm    

Page 3 of 65

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


 CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20170626-1 

                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 

June 26, 2017 

        

A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on 

Monday, June 26, 2017, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, second floor, Council 

Chambers.   Mayor Kinzel called the meeting to order at 8:05 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL: Present  -  Common Council:   Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members John 

Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick Verhaalen, Mitch 

Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, Mike O’Keefe  

  

                       Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, Director of Engineering 

and Public Works Tom Wiza, Police Chief Tom Frank, City Clerk 

Constance McHugh, Parks, Recreation and Forestry Director Mikko 

Hilvo, Wastewater Superintendent Eric Hackert, City Attorney 

Michael Herbrand; interested citizens and news media 

 

STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

At Mayor Kinzel’s request, City Clerk McHugh verified that notice of this meeting was provided to 

the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News Graphic, to all news 

media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with the Wisconsin Open 

Meetings law.  Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide their input during the 

citizen comment portion of the meeting. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Motion made by Council Member O’Keefe, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve the 

minutes of the June 12, 2017 Common Council meeting.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

CONSIDER RECOMMENDATION OF POLICE CHIEF TO DENY NEW OPERATOR’S 

LICENSE APPLICATION OF ELIZABETH P. MILLER 

 

Chief Frank said an application for a bartender’s license was received from Elizabeth Miller.  Ms. 

Miller has a felony conviction.  State Statutes prohibits anyone with a felony from holding a license. 

 

Attorney Herbrand said the Council has the right to deny any applicant with a felony conviction. 

 

Motion made by Council Member O’Keefe, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to deny the 

operator’s license application of Elizabeth P. Miller based on the recommendation of Chief Frank.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 65



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170626-2 

June 26, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

CONSIDER REQUEST FOR COUNTRY MUSIC EVENT AT CEDAR CREEK PARK 

(COUNTRY IN THE BURG) ON AUGUST 25, 2018  
 

Director Hilvo said he has been working with resident Alex Uhan to hold a country music event at 

Cedar Creek Park on August 25, 2018 called Country in the Burg.  He said from a Parks and 

Recreation standpoint this would be a great event for the community. 

 

Mr. Uhan said the intent is to bring another music venue to the City on August 25, 2018.  The plan 

calls for three major acts with an attendance of 1,500 to 2,000 persons during the first year.  He is 

teaming with Mel’s Charities to hold this ticketed event.  The goal is to raise $5,000 - $10,000 the 

first year that will go to Mel’s Charities. 

 

Council Member Thome asked who would sign the artists’ agreements and if liability coverage will 

be provided. 

 

Mr. Uhan said the Friends of Cedarburg Parks and Recreation or Mel’s Charities would sign the 

agreements.  Director Hilvo said the insurance is something that will be worked out.  He said 

contracts for the artists will need to be signed soon; however, efforts will not continue unless the 

Council approves the concept.  If the Council is on board with the idea, the details will be worked 

out. 

 

Council Member Czarnecki asked how many people Summer Sounds brings in on a Friday night.  

Council Member Regenfuss said the average is 5,000 people per night. 

 

Attorney Herbrand said communities with these types of events typically seek reimbursement for 

Public Works and Public Safety involvement, approve a site plan, and require liability insurance 

with the municipality named as an additional insured.   

 

Director Hilvo said the costs to the City will be covered; similar to what is done with Summer 

Sounds.  He said a majority of the financial support will come from Mel’s Charities.  There will be 

no financial commitment from the City. 

 

Council Member Dieffenbach said it is premature to make a decision at this time.  He said he is fine 

with the concept, but would like to see more details. 

 

Motion made by Council Arnett, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to approve holding a 

country music event at Cedar Creek Park on August 25, 2018, subject to reimbursement to the City 

of all costs, approval of the footprint by the Fire Chief and Police Chief, and appropriate liability 

insurance provided.   

 

Council Member Verhaalen disclosed that he knows Tom “Mel” Stanton of Mel’s Charities very 

well.  Attorney Herbrand opined that this is not a conflict of interest. 

 

Council Member Regenfuss said there may be a need to control the number of people that attend the 

event for safety reasons.  Chief Frank said this is something the Fire Inspector will weigh in on. 

 

Page 5 of 65



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170626-3 

June 26, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

Motion carried with Council Members Czarnecki, Arnett, Verhaalen, Regenfuss, Thome, and 

O’Keefe voting aye and Council Member Dieffenbach voting nay. 

 

CONSIDER APPLICATIONS FROM GG & KR LLC, GORDON M. GOGGIN, AGENT, 

KNOWN AS THE STILTHOUSE, W62 N630 WASHINGTON AVENUE, AND SKYCABLE, 

INC., GUS WIRTH JR., AGENT, KNOWN AS ONE FORTY SIX, W63 N146-148 

WASHINGTON AVENUE, FOR CLASS “B” BEER AND “CLASS B” LIQUOR LICENSE 

FORMERLY HELD BY LA FAJITAS; AND ACTION THEREON 

 

Attorney Herbrand said a liquor license has recently become available due to the closing of La 

Fajitas.  Two applicants have applied for the license.  He said the Council has a large amount of 

discretion in terms of issuing this available license as long as a record is created showing the 

rationale for the decision. 

 

Gordon Goggin, owner of the Stilthouse, said he currently has a beer and wine license.  His 

establishment opened up in 2013 with the hope of someday obtaining a full liquor license.  He said 

many guests ask for alcoholic drinks with 10% of his patrons being turned away each week.  He has 

applied for the license to be able to serve that demographic. 

 

Gus Wirth, owner of Echo Plaza where La Fajitas was located, said he is asking for the liquor 

license to replace a liquor license at the same location.  He said this is a timing issue.  La Fajitas 

closed in May; however, he has four different people who are looking at this space to open a 

restaurant.  Two of the individuals are considering a Mexican restaurant so a liquor license is 

necessary because margaritas are part of the experience.  This space in Echo Plaza has had a liquor 

license for 17 years.  Mr. Wirth said typically Cedarburg keeps liquor licenses with the building. 

 

Council Member Thome made a motion to grant the available liquor license to GG & KR LLC, 

Gordon M. Goggin Agent, known as the Stilthouse, W62 N630 Washington Avenue, based on the 

restaurant being in business for over four years and being active and thriving in the community.  

Motion was seconded by Council Member Czarnecki. 

 

Council Member Arnett said if the license is granted to Mr. Goggin, there may be a vacancy in 

Echo Plaza.  He said this is a difficult decision, as another liquor license may become available soon 

due to an increase in population. 

 

Mayor Kinzel said the Council recently adopted an ordinance requiring that businesses with liquor 

licenses must be open a minimum of 15 days each month with a minimum of four hours each day.  

He said if someone is granted the license and not using it right away there will be an immediate 

violation of the ordinance. 

 

Attorney Herbrand said this is a good point.  He said the Council has discretion in granting this 

license, and does not necessarily have to grant the license. 

 

Mr. Wirth said a new business potentially coming to town hinges on the Council’s decision. 

 

Council Member Czarnecki said by not granting the license to Mr. Goggin, a business that took a 

chance on a lesser license when it opened will be penalized. 

Page 6 of 65



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170626-4 

June 26, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

Council Member O’Keefe said if the City is able to obtain another license and a new restaurant 

comes to town Mr. Goggin could be penalized again. 

 

With Council Members Czarnecki, Dieffenbach, Verhaalen, Thome, and O’Keefe voting aye and 

Council Members Arnett and Regenfuss voting nay, the motion to grant the liquor license to GG & 

KR, LLC carried. 

 

CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2017-18 AMENDING SECTION 10-1-16(b) OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES TO AUTHORIZE THE PLACEMENT OF YIELD SIGNS FOR 

WALNUT STREET AT MADISON AVENUE 

 

Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2017-18 amending Section 10-1-16(b) of the Code of Ordinances authorizing the 

placement of yield signs for Walnut Street at Madison Avenue.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

CONSIDER RELOCATION ORDER TO ACQUIRE CERTAIN LANDS AND CERTAIN 

PROPERTY INTERESTS FOR THE HIGHLAND DRIVE PUMP STATION 

 

The Highland Drive sanitary sewer pump station has a very large service area which includes 

presently vacant lands along Sheboygan Road and the Highway 60 corridor.  This pump station 

needs to be replaced and enlarged in the next few years to accommodate future development.  The 

most cost effective means to provide the additional capacity is to construct new pumping facilities 

on the lands immediately adjacent to the existing pump station.  The property under consideration is 

owned by BMO Harris bank.  The area proposed for pump station construction, while nicely 

landscaped, does not contain any buildings or facilities essential to current business operations. 

 

Director Wiza said the relocation order would establish the City’s intent to acquire this land and 

begin the process of talking to representatives of the bank. 

 

Council Member Arnett asked if the bank has been contacted as a courtesy. 

 

Attorney Herbrand said the relocation order is required by State Statute and kicks off the process of 

Director Wiza and City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes talking to representatives of the bank to try 

to reach an accord. 

 

Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Verhaalen, to approve the 

relocation order to acquire certain lands and certain property interests for the Highland Drive pump 

station.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

DISCUSS AND APPROVE PRELIMINARY BUDGET PARAMETERS, INCLUDING 

OPERATING EXPENDITURES AND/OR TAX LEVY, GROWTH TARGETS FOR 

DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPOSED 2018 BUDGET 

 

City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said annually the Council sets the parameters for staff to 

follow during the development of the budget. Usually the expectation is that the tax rate should be 

held at the same rate as the previous year.   The estimated assessed value, before manufacturing 

numbers are complete, is increasing $29 million.  This will allow the tax rate to remain the same or 

Page 7 of 65



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170626-5 

June 26, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

even decrease.  The one known loss in revenue is the expenditure restraint revenue of $167,000 for 

2018.   

 

It was the consensus of the Council that the goal should be a decrease in the tax rate if possible. 

 

CONSIDER BUDGET CALENDAR FOR 2018 
 

City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said the proposed budget calendar for the 2018 budget is the 

same as last year.  The budget will be distributed to the Council on October 5 with the public 

hearing/budget presentation at the October 30 meeting.  It may be necessary to add dates in October 

for budget deliberations if necessary.   This year only those departments with larger budgets and 

capital improvement projects will present to the Council.  Others will be present for questions. The 

budget is scheduled to be adopted on November 27; however, if numbers are received by the State 

and all goes well the approval could be moved to November 13. 

 

PRESENTATION OF STRATEGIC WORK PLAN 

 

City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said the goals and objectives of the Strategic Plan have been 

updated. The goals and objectives typically come from staff and various boards, committees and 

commissions.  She encouraged Council Members to review the plan and provide suggestions to her.  

Also distributed were results of a citizen survey.  She asked Council Members to review the results 

and let her know if any items should be added to the plan based on survey responses or comments. 

 

Council Member Dieffenbach stated staff should be looking at ways to share services with other 

communities or the school district.  One example of this is the wash bay in the new Public Works 

facilities.  He said this could be used by surrounding communities and the school district to generate 

revenue. 

 

City Administrator/Treasurer said she met today with representatives of the Fire Department in the 

City and other communities to discuss sharing opportunities.  In terms of the Public Works facility, 

staff would like the opportunity to see how things go at the facility first before determining if there 

are any revenue opportunities. 

 

PAYMENT OF BILLS 

 

Motion made by Council Member Regenfuss, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to approve 

the payment of the bills for the period 6/09/17 through 06/20/17, transfers for the period 06/10/17 

through 06/23/17, and payroll for the period 06/04/17 through 06/17/17.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

LICENSE APPLICATIONS 

 

Motion made by Council Member O’Keefe, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to authorize 

the issuance of new Operators licenses for the period ending June 30, 2018 to Julie B. Gottfried, 

Carina R. Heckert, Alexander J. Hildebrand, Scott A. Kosidowski, Brenda L. Mueller, Jakob P. 

Pedersen, and Jeannette M. Schupp.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Page 8 of 65



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170626-6 

June 26, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

Motion made by Council Member O’Keefe, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to authorize 

the issuance of renewal Operators licenses for the period ending June 30, 2018 to Joey M. Baumle, 

Denise M. Beno, David J. Burnside, Kelly L. Dockery, Chad A. Doedens, Micah J. Drengler, Emily 

E. Eineichner, James D. Hintz, Madissen M. Homayouni, Michael E. Hubbard, Sam C. Kornetzke, 

Aida A. Kozic, Zachariah R. Ladd, Cynthia M. Larson, Mark E. Larson, Todd R. Luft, Judith A. 

Murphy, Karen M. Nelson, William R. Poull, Lindsey A. Priaulx, Amy B. Radtke, Melissa M. 

Radtke, Michael N. Russo, Caryn M. Sager, Mark J. Schubert, Nicholas W. Schultz, Matthew R. 

Stein, and Thane A. Storck.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 

Council Member Dieffenbach asked if Council Members are signed up for the 4
th

 of July parade.  

He was informed that the application fee for participation was paid to the Chamber. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
       

Motion made by Council Member Czarnecki, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to adjourn the 

meeting at 9:17 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

       Constance K. McHugh, MMC/WCPC 

       City Clerk 

Page 9 of 65



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: July 10, 2017                                                                   ITEM NO:  8. B. 

                         

 

 

TITLE: Consider agreement with Short Elliot Hendrickson Inc. for design, construction administration and 

inspection services associated with the communications monopole; and action thereon 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY: In March 2017 the City authorized SEH to proceed with design of the Western Road 

communications monopole. To expedite the process, the Common Council authorized a not-to-exceed amount 

of $28,700, which was the amount of the line item for “design” listed in the project cost estimate. Since then 

SEH has submitted a detailed engineering services proposal which includes the design, bidding, construction 

administration, inspection. 

 

Since the amount of this proposal ($30,000) is slightly more than the amount previously approved, staff is 

bringing back the now detailed proposal for approval.       

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Award the monopole engineering services contract to SEH.  

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A   

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Hourly consultant rates per proposal.  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: SEH proposal, March 27 Common Council Minutes 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza - Director of Engineering and Public Works 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza 262-375-7610 

                                                                 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 10 of 65



Page 11 of 65



Page 12 of 65



Page 13 of 65



Page 14 of 65



Page 15 of 65



Page 16 of 65



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:    July 10, 2017                                                             ITEM NO:   8. A. 

                           

 

TITLE: Consider issuance of a Transient Entertainment License to Rainbow Valley Rides, Inc. for the Ozaukee 

County Fair on August 2 (1:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m.), August 3, 4 & 5 (10:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m.), and August 6, 

2017 (10:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.) and the request to waive the requirement for a Clean Up Bond as requested by 

Agricultural Society; and action thereon 
 

 

                   

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Rainbow Valley Rides, Inc. has applied for a Transient Entertainment License for the 

Ozaukee County Fair.  A request has been received from the Ozaukee County Agricultural Society to waive the 

requirement of a clean-up bond.  According to Sec. 7-6-1(d)(3) of the Municipal Code, the Council has the 

option to waive this requirement, which has been done for the past twenty two years. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize issuance of license and waive clean-up bond requirement 

(contingent upon review and approval of employees as submitted to Police Chief). 

 

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  $250 in fees to be paid ($50 per day), which is included in the 2017 budget. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Application from Rainbow Valley Rides, Inc. 

 Letter from Ozaukee County Agricultural Society 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Rainbow Valley Rides, Inc. and the Ozaukee County Agricultural Society 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Constance McHugh, City Clerk    376-3919 
 
 

 

Page 17 of 65



Page 18 of 65



Page 19 of 65



Page 20 of 65



CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: July 10, 2017                                                           ITEM NO:   8. C. 

 

                           

TITLE:   Consider request of the Friends of the Cedarburg Library to waive liquor liability insurance 

requirement for event to be held on July 13, 2017; and action thereon 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   The Friends of the Cedarburg Library are holding an event on July 13, 2017 prior to the 

book sale in the Community Center Gym where wine will be served.  The City’s policy, CC-25, requires that 

special events in the Community Gym require liquor liability insurance in the amount of $500,000 for each 

occurrence and $500,000 aggregate.  The Friends cannot obtain the required coverage without substantially 

increasing their insurance premium.  Policy CC-25 states that significant variance from these standards must be 

authorized by the City Administrator after consultation with the City Attorney. 

 

Council Member Dick Dieffenbach has asked that this matter be discussed at the July 10 Council meeting. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    N/A 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   N/A 

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  N/A 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:     Policy CC-25 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:     Council Member Dick Dieffenbach 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:           Dick Dieffenbach or Amy Kletzien 
 
 
 

 

Page 21 of 65



 

CITY OF CEDARBURG 

POLICY/PROCEDURE MANUAL 

SUBJECT:    SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS                                  CC-25 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

General: The City of Cedarburg acknowledges that a sound risk management program is an 

important function of its operational and administrative systems to minimize the cost of 

financial loss resulting from personal injury and property damage.  Accordingly, it is 

important that the City is adequately protected from loss due to the negligence of others 

(contractors, suppliers, vendors, etc.) who are working for, with, or on behalf of the 

City.  Furthermore, as the Community Center Gym, city parks and other city property 

are available for use by resident and non-resident individuals and groups, it is important 

that adequate protection be provided.  Sponsors of events in the City (festivals, 

fireworks, walks/runs, concerts, athletic activities, etc.) shall also provide adequate 

protection. 

This is normally done by requiring the other party to carry a certain level of insurance to 

defend and indemnify the City from losses arising out of their activities or from their 

products or services.  The following standards have been established to help provide 

direction and consistency for city departments when certificates of insurance are 

required.  

Note: Until the appropriate certificate of insurance is obtained, the City will NOT issue 

a license, permit or enter into a contract.  

Procedure:   INSURANCE STANDARDS BY CATEGORY 

1. Small Exposure Jobs (Exhibit A):  

a) Includes sidewalk construction, street patch repair, tree pruning, tree 

removal, tree planting, roofing, plumbing, painting and electrical work, 

janitorial services, heating, etc.  

b) Insurance requirements – Exhibit A would normally apply.  

2. Large Exposure Jobs (Exhibit B): 

a) Includes concrete paving, asphalt paving, sewer construction, 

 excavation, blasting, bridges, demolition, building construction, etc. 

 

b) Insurance requirements – Exhibit B would normally apply.  

Note: If the work being done involves exposures which are beyond what would 

normally be expected or project values are very high, there may be a need to 

increase the limit of the umbrella or types of insurance.  

 

Page 22 of 65



CC-25 

Page 2 

 

4. Service Agreements (Exhibit A):  

a) Includes elevator maintenance, boiler maintenance, heating and 

ventilation, etc.  

b) Insurance requirements - Exhibit A would normally apply.  

5. Professional Service Agreements (Exhibit C):  

a) Includes architects, engineers, consultants, medical professionals, 

attorneys, accountants, etc.  

b) Insurance requirements – Exhibit C would normally apply.  

c) On more complex jobs, a decision will be made by the Department Head 

and City Administrator whether higher limits are necessary.  

6. Special Events – Small Exposure: 

a) Includes block parties, most private gatherings in parks, or activities that 

draw less than 250 people.  

b) Insurance requirements - certificates of insurance are normally not 

required for these activities. However, the sponsoring organization is 

responsible for any losses which may occur as the result of their activity.   

7. Special Events – Medium Exposure (Exhibit D-1):  

a) Includes events such as concerts (not rock), dances, parades (under 500 

spectators), auto shows, animal shows, use of the Community Center 

Gym, or activities that draw 250-5,000 people or activities requiring 

"street occupancy permits".  

b) Insurance requirements – Exhibit D-1 would normally apply.  

8. Special Events–Large Exposure Under 25,000 People (Exhibit D-2): 

a) Includes events such as parades, rock concerts, bike races, circuses, runs, 

sidewalk sales, or activities that draw between 5,000 and 25,000 people 

or events with amusement devices, pony rides, petting zoos, bleachers 

used to seat more than 500 people or fireworks displays.  

b) Insurance requirements – Exhibit D-2 would normally apply.  

9. Special Events – Large Exposure Over 25,000 People (Exhibit D-3): 

 a) This would include all events listed above where attendance is over 

   25,000. 

Page 23 of 65



CC-25 

Page 3 

 

 b) Insurance requirements.  Exhibit D-3 would normally apply. 

10. Use of City Facilities, Business Tenants, and Concessions (Exhibit A): 

a) Includes sale and/or distribution of food and beverage concessions, and 

business space rental for offices, storage or other purposes.  

b) Insurance requirements – Exhibit A would normally apply.  

11. Community Development Block Grants (Exhibit E): 

   a) Insurance requirements – Exhibit E would normally apply. 

12. Miscellaneous:  

a) Includes jobs or activities such as asbestos abatement, pollution clean up, 

oil recycling, hazardous waste removal, or any new contract or activities 

where it is not clear what level of insurance should be required.  

b) Insurance requirements for these types of activities would normally be 

set by the City Administrator and Department Head.  

13. Indemnification Clause in Contracts: 

All City contracts should contain an indemnification clause as follows:  

Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City of Cedarburg 

from and against any and all liability, loss, damage expense, costs, including 

attorney fees arising out of the work performed as described herein, caused in 

whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the contractor, any 

subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone 

whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the sole 

negligence or willful misconduct of the City.  

14. Additional Insured: 

All certificates of insurance must list the City of Cedarburg as an additional 

insured. 

15. Review of Certificates of Insurance: 

Department Heads, in conjunction with Accountant II/Accounts Receivable, will 

be responsible for the review of all certificates of insurance within their 

department to determine if they meet the requirements of the standards.   

 

 

Page 24 of 65



CC-25 

Page 4 

 

16. Waiver or Modification of Insurance Requirements: 

There may be times when an organization or contractor cannot meet the City’s 

insurance requirements or a certificate of insurance is not necessary. Any 

significant variance from these standards must be authorized by the City 

Administrator after consultation with the City Attorney. 

Page 25 of 65



CC-25 

Page 5 

 

                              EXHIBIT A 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CITY OF CEDARBURG 

"SMALL EXPOSURE JOBS" 

It is hereby agreed and understood that the insurance required by the City of Cedarburg is primary 

coverage and that any insurance or self insurance maintained by the City of Cedarburg, its officers, 

council members, agents, employees or authorized volunteers will not contribute to a loss. All 

insurance shall be in full force prior to commencing work and remain in force until the entire job is 

completed or the length of time that is specified in the contract.  

1. GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE 

A. Commercial General Liability 

 1) $1,000,000 general aggregate 

 2) $1,000,000 products - completed operations aggregate 

 3) $500,000 personal injury and advertising injury 

 4) $500,000 each occurrence limit 

B. Claims made form of coverage is not acceptable. 

C. Insurance must include: 

 1) Premises and Operations Liability 

 2) Blanket Contractual Liability 

 3) Personal Injury 

 4) Explosion, collapse and underground coverage 

 5) Products/Completed Operations 

 6) The general aggregate must apply separately to this project/location 

2. BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE 

A. Limits - $250,000 each person/$500,000 each accident for Bodily Injury   

  and $100,000 for Property Damage OR $500,000 Combined Single Limit   

  for Bodily Injury and Property Damage each accident 

 

 B. Must cover liability for "Any Auto" - including Owned, Non-Owned and   

  Hired Auto-mobile Liability 

3. WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY. If  required by 

 Wisconsin State Statute or any Workers Compensation Statutes of a different state, must carry 

 coverage for Statutory Workers Compensation & Employers Liability limit of: 

A.  $100,000 Each Accident 

 B.  $500,000 Disease Policy Limit 

 C.  $100,000 Disease - Each Employee 

 

Page 26 of 65



CC-25 

Page 6 

 

4. BUILDER'S RISK/INSTALLATION FLOATER 

A. City of Cedarburg will not assume responsibility for loss, including loss of  

  use, for damage to property, materials, tools, equipment, and items of a   

  similar nature which are being either used in the work being performed by   

  the contractor or are to be installed or erected by the contractor 

B. If coverage is desired for this exposure, the contractor may, at his own   

  cost, procure insurance to cover same 

5. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS  

* Additional Insured - On the General Liability Coverage, Comprehensive Automobile 

 Coverage and Umbrella Coverage. City of Cedarburg shall be Additional Insured. 

* Endorsement - The Additional Insured Policy endorsement must accompany the Certificate of 

 Insurance.  

* Certificates of Insurance - A copy of the Certificate of Insurance must be on file with the City 

 Clerk. 

* Notice - City of Cedarburg requires 30 day written notice of cancellation, non-renewal or 

 material change in the insurance coverage. 

* The insurance coverage required must be provided by an insurance carrier with the 

 "Best" rating of "A-VII" or better. All carriers shall be admitted carriers in the State of 

 Wisconsin. 

  

  

  

  

  

Page 27 of 65



CC-25 

Page 7 

 

                                              EXHIBIT B 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CITY OF CEDARBURG 

"LARGE EXPOSURE JOBS" 

It is hereby agreed and understood that the insurance required by the City of Cedarburg is primary 

coverage and that any insurance or self insurance maintained by the City of Cedarburg, its officers, 

council members, agents, employees or authorized volunteers will not contribute to a loss. All 

insurance shall be in full force prior to commencing work and remain in force until the entire job is 

completed or the length of time that is specified in the contract.  

1. GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE 

A. Commercial General Liability 

 1) $1,000,000 general aggregate 

 2) $1,000,000 products - completed operations aggregate 

 3) $500,000 personal injury and advertising injury 

 4) $500,000 each occurrence limit 

B. Claims made form of coverage is not acceptable. 

C. Insurance must include: 

 1) Premises and Operations Liability 

 2) Blanket Contractual Liability 

 3) Personal Injury 

 4) Explosion, collapse and underground coverage 

 5) Products/Completed Operations 

 6) The general aggregate must apply separately to this project/location 

2. BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE 

A. Limits - $250,000 each person/$500,000 each accident for Bodily Injury   

  and $100,000 for Property Damage OR $500,000 Combined Single Limit   

  for Bodily Injury and Property Damage each accident 

B. Must cover liability for "Any Auto" - including Owned, Non-Owned and   

  Hired Auto-mobile Liability 

3. WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY. If  required by 

 Wisconsin State Statute or any Workers Compensation Statutes of a different state, must carry 

 coverage for Statutory Workers Compensation & Employers Liability limit of: 

A.  $100,000 Each Accident 

 B.  $500,000 Disease Policy Limit 

 C.  $100,000 Disease - Each Employee 

 

Page 28 of 65



CC-25 

Page 8 

 

4. UMBRELLA COVERAGE 

 A. Limits - $2,000,000 each occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate 

 B. Claims made coverage is not acceptable 

 C. $10,000 self-insured retention 

 D. Must be no less broad than underlying coverages 

5. BUILDER'S RISK/INSTALLATION FLOATER 

A. City of Cedarburg will not assume responsibility for loss, including loss of  

  use, for damage to property, materials, tools, equipment, and items of a   

  similar nature which are being either used in the work being performed by   

  the contractor or are to be installed or erected by the contractor 

B. If coverage is desired for this exposure, the contractor may, at his own   

  cost, procure insurance to cover same 

6. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS  

* Additional Insured - On the General Liability Coverage, Comprehensive Automobile 

 Coverage and Umbrella Coverage. City of Cedarburg shall be Additional Insured. 

* Endorsement - The Additional Insured Policy endorsement must accompany the Certificate of 

 Insurance.  

* Certificates of Insurance - A copy of the Certificate of Insurance must be on file with the  City 

 Clerk. 

* Notice - City of Cedarburg requires 30 day written notice of cancellation, non-renewal or 

 material change in the insurance coverage. 

* The insurance coverage required must be provided by an insurance carrier with the 

 "Best" rating of "A-VII" or better. All carriers shall be admitted carriers in the State of 

 Wisconsin. 

7. AUTOMOBILE POLLUTION LIABILITY (including loading and unloading)  

A. Limits - $1,000,000 each occurrence and $2,000,000 annual aggregate 

B. Maximum deductible is $2,500. Insured is responsible for any    

  claims under the deductible. 

C. Must cover pollutant clean up, and resulting bodily injury and    

  property damage liability 

D. Must cover liability for "any auto" including owned, non-owned    

  and hired automobile liability  

Page 29 of 65



CC-25 

Page 9 

 

                                           EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CITY OF CEDARBURG 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

 

It is hereby agreed and understood that the insurance required by the City of Cedarburg is primary 

coverage and that any insurance or self insurance maintained by the City of Cedarburg, its officers, 

council members, agents, employees or authorized volunteers will not contribute to a loss.  All 

insurance shall be in full force prior to commencing work and remain in force until the entire job is 

completed or the length of time that is specified in the contract.                                                                      

                                                                         

1. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 
                                                                         

A. Limits                                                      

(a) $500,000 each claim/$1,000,000 annual aggregate     

 

B. Must continue coverage for 2 years after final payment for service/job                                                 

                                                                    

2. GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE                                      
                                                                    

A. Commercial General Liability     

    (a)  $1,000,000 general aggregate                            

 (b)  $1,000,000 products - completed operations aggregate    

(c)  $500,000 personal injury and advertising injury         

(d)  $500,000 each occurrence limit                          

                                                                    

B. Claims made form of coverage is not acceptable.             

                                                                    

C. Insurance must include:                                     

  (a)  Premises and Operations Liability                       

(b)  Blanket Contractual Liability                           

(c)  Personal Injury                                                                                 

(d)  Explosion, collapse and underground coverage             

(e)  Products/Completed Operations                            

(f)  The general aggregate must apply separately to this     

        project/location                                         

                                                                     

3. BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE                                     
                                                                     

A. Limits - $250,000 each person/$500,000 each accident for Bodily Injury and $100,000 

for Property Damage OR $500,000 Combined Single Limit for Bodily Injury and 

Property Damage each accident                   

                                   

B. Must cover liability for "Any Auto" - including Owned, Non-Owned and Hired 

Automobile Liability                     

                                                                 

4. WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY - If required by    

Wisconsin State Statute or any Workers Compensation Statutes of a different state.                                               

Page 30 of 65



CC-25 

Page 10 

 

 

A. Must carry coverage for Statutory Workers Compensation and Employers Liability limit 

of:    

$100,000 Each Accident                                          

$500,000 Disease Policy Limit                                   

$100,000 Disease - Each Employee                                

                                                                       

5. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS                                               

                                                                         

* Additional Insured - On the General Liability Coverage, Comprehensive Automobile 

 Coverage and Umbrella Coverage. City of Cedarburg shall be Additional Insured.                                                      

 

*  Endorsement - The Additional Insured Policy endorsement must accompany the Certificate of 

 Insurance.                                  

 

*  Certificates of Insurance - A copy of the Certificate of Insurance must be on file with the  City 

 Clerk.                

                                  

*  Notice - City of Cedarburg requires 30 day written notice of cancellation,  non-renewal or 

 material change in the insurance coverage.                                                       

 

* The insurance coverage required must be provided by an insurance carrier with the 

 "Best" rating of "A-VII" or better.  All carriers shall be admitted carriers in the State of 

 Wisconsin.                                             

 

 

Page 31 of 65



CC-25 

Page 11 

 

EXHIBIT D-1 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CITY OF CEDARBURG  

SPECIAL EVENTS – MEDIUM EXPOSURE – 250-5,000 PEOPLE 

It is hereby agreed and understood that the insurance required by the City of Cedarburg is primary 

coverage and that any insurance or self insurance maintained by the City of Cedarburg, its officers, 

council members, agents, employees or authorized volunteers will not contribute to a loss. All 

insurance shall be in full force prior to commencing the event and remain inn force throughout the 

entire event, including the clean up period after the event.  

1. GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  

A. Commercial General Liability  

  (a) $1,000,000 general aggregate  

  (b) $1,000,000 products - completed operations aggregate  

  (c) $500,000 personal injury and advertising injury  

  (d) $500,000 each occurrence limit  

 

 B. Claims made form of coverage is not acceptable.  

 

 C. Insurance must include:  

  (a) Premises and Operations Liability  

  (b) Blanket Contractual Liability  

  (c) Personal Injury  

  (d) Explosion, collapse and underground coverage  

  (e) Products/Completed Operations  

  (f) The general aggregate must apply separately to this project/location  

2. BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE - If used before, during or after the event.  

A. Limits - $250,000 each person/$500,000 each accident for Bodily Injury   

  and $100,000 for Property Damage OR $500,000 Combined Single Limit   

  for Bodily Injury and Property Damage each accident  

3. WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY - If required by 

 Wisconsin State Statute or any Workers Compensation Statutes of a different state.  

A. Must carry coverage for Statutory Workers Compensation and Employers   

  Liability limit of:  

$100,000 Each Accident  

$500,000 Disease Policy Limit  

$100,000 Disease - Each Employee  

4. LIQUOR LIABILITY - If the event holder is selling alcoholic beverages then Liquor 

 Liability with the following limit and coverage must be carried:  

Page 32 of 65



CC-25 

Page 12 

 

A. Limits - $500,000 each occurrence, $500,000 aggregate  

5. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS  

*  Additional Insured - On the General Liability Coverage, Comprehensive  Automobile 

 Coverage and Umbrella Coverage. City of Cedarburg shall be Additional Insured.  

*  Endorsement - Additional Insured Policy endorsement must accompany the Certificate of 

 Insurance.  

*  Certificates of Insurance - A copy of the Certificate of Insurance must be on file with the City 

 Clerk.  

*  Notice - City of Cedarburg requires 30 day written notice of cancellation, non-renewal or 

 material change in the insurance coverage.  

* The insurance coverage required must be provided by an insurance carrier with the 

 "Best" rating of "A-VII" or better. All carriers shall be admitted carriers in the State of 

 Wisconsin. 

Page 33 of 65



CC-25 

Page 13 

 

EXHIBIT D-2 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CITY OF CEDARBURG  

SPECIAL EVENTS – LARGE EXPOSURE - UNDER 25,000 PEOPLE 

It is hereby agreed and understood that the insurance required by the City of Cedarburg is primary 

coverage and that any insurance or self insurance maintained by the City of Cedarburg, its officers, 

council members, agents, employees or authorized volunteers will not contribute to a loss. All 

insurance shall be in full force prior to commencing the event and remain in force throughout the entire 

event, including the clean up period after the event.  

1. GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  

A. Commercial General Liability  

  (a) $1,000,000 general aggregate  

  (b) $1,000,000 products - completed operations aggregate  

  (c) $1,000,000 personal injury and advertising injury  

  (d) $1,000,000 each occurrence limit  

B. Claims made form of coverage is not acceptable.  

C. Insurance must include:  

  (a) Premises and Operations Liability  

  (b) Blanket Contractual Liability  

  (c) Personal Injury  

  (d) Explosion, collapse and underground coverage  

  (e) Products/Completed Operations  

  (f) The general aggregate must apply separately to this project/location  

2. BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE  

A. Limits - $250,000 each person/$500,000 each accident for Bodily Injury   

  and $100,000 for Property Damage OR $500,000 Combined Single Limit   

  for Bodily Injury and Property Damage each accident  

B. Must cover liability for "Any Auto" - including Owned, Non-Owned and   

  Hired Automobile Liability  

3. WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY - If  

 required by Wisconsin State Statute or any Workers Compensation Statutes of a  

 different state.  

A. Must carry coverage for Statutory Workers Compensation and Employers   

  Liability limit of:  

$100,000 Each Accident  

 $500,000 Disease Policy Limit  

 $100,000 Disease - Each Employee  

Page 34 of 65



CC-25 

Page 14 

 

4. LIQUOR LIABILITY - If the event holder is selling alcoholic beverages then Liquor 

 Liability with the following limit and coverage must be carried:  

A. Limits - $500,000 each occurrence, $500,000 aggregate  

5. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS  

*  Additional Insured - On the General Liability Coverage, Comprehensive  Automobile 

 Coverage and Umbrella Coverage. City of Cedarburg shall be Additional Insureds.  

*  Endorsement - Additional Insured Policy endorsement must accompany the Certificate of 

 Insurance.  

*  Certificates of Insurance - A copy of the Certificate of Insurance must be on file with the  City 

 Clerk.  

*  Notice - City of Cedarburg requires 30 day written notice of cancellation, non-renewal or 

 material change in the insurance coverage.  

* The insurance coverage required must be provided by an insurance carrier with the 

 "Best" rating of "A-VII" or better. All Carriers shall be admitted carriers in the State of 

 Wisconsin.  

                        

Page 35 of 65



CC-25 

Page 15 

 

                                        EXHIBIT D-3 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CITY OF CEDARBURG  

SPECIAL EVENTS – LARGE EXPOSURE - OVER 25,000 PEOPLE 

It is hereby agreed and understood that the insurance required by the City of Cedarburg is primary 

coverage and that any insurance or self insurance maintained by the City of Cedarburg, its officers, 

council members, agents, employees or authorized volunteers will not contribute to a loss. All 

insurance shall be in full force prior to commencing the event and remain in force throughout the entire 

event, including the clean up period after the event.  

1. GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  

A. Commercial General Liability  

  (a) $1,000,000 general aggregate  

  (b) $1,000,000 products - completed operations aggregate  

  (c) $1,000,000 personal injury and advertising injury  

  (d) $1,000,000 each occurrence limit  

B. Claims made form of coverage is not acceptable.  

C. Insurance must include:  

  (a) Premises and Operations Liability  

  (b) Blanket Contractual Liability  

  (c) Personal Injury  

  (d) Explosion, collapse and underground coverage  

  (e) Products/Completed+ Operations  

  (f) The general aggregate must apply separately to this project/location  

2. BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE  

A. Limits - $250,000 each person/$500,000 each accident for Bodily Injury   

  and $100,000 for Property Damage OR $500,000 Combined Single Limit   

  for Bodily Injury and Property Damage each accident  

B. Must cover liability for "Any Auto" - including Owned, Non-Owned and   

  Hired Automobile Liability  

3. WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY - If  

 required by Wisconsin State Statute or any Workers Compensation Statutes of a  

 different state.  

A. Must carry coverage for Statutory Workers Compensation and Employers   

  Liability limit of:  

$100,000 Each Accident  

 $500,000 Disease Policy Limit  

 $100,000 Disease - Each Employee  

Page 36 of 65



CC-25 

Page 16 

 

4. UMBRELLA COVERAGE 

 A. Limits - $2,000,000 each occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate 

 B. Claims made coverage is not acceptable 

 C. $10,000 self-insured retention 

 D. Must be no less broad than underlying coverage 

5. LIQUOR LIABILITY - If the event holder is selling alcoholic beverages then Liquor 

 Liability with the following limit and coverage must be carried:  

A. Limits - $500,000 each occurrence, $500,000 aggregate  

6. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS  

*  Additional Insured - On the General Liability Coverage, Comprehensive Automobile 

 Coverage and Umbrella Coverage. City of Cedarburg shall be Additional Insured.  

*  Endorsement - Additional Insured Policy endorsement must accompany the Certificate of 

 Insurance.  

*  Certificates of Insurance - A copy of the Certificate of Insurance must be on file with the City 

 Clerk.  

*  Notice - City of Cedarburg requires 30 day written notice of cancellation, non-renewal or 

 material change in the insurance coverage.  

* The insurance coverage required must be provided by an insurance carrier with the 

 "Best" rating of "A-VII" or better. All Carriers shall be admitted carriers in the State of 

 Wisconsin.  

                                  

Page 37 of 65



CC-25 

Page 17 

 

                                       EXHIBIT E 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT JOBS 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

FOR CITY OF CEDARBURG 

It is hereby agreed and understood that the insurance required by the City of Cedarburg is primary 

coverage and that any insurance or self insurance maintained by the City of Cedarburg, its officers, 

council members, agents, employees or authorized volunteers will not contribute to a loss. All 

insurance shall be in full force prior to commencing work and remain in force until the entire job is 

completed or the length of time that is specified in the contract.  

1. GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE 

A. Commercial General Liability 

  (a) $500,000 general aggregate 

  (b) $500,000 products - completed operations aggregate 

  (c) $250,000 personal injury and advertising injury 

  (d) $250,000 each occurrence limit 

 B. Claims made form of coverage is not acceptable. 

 C. Insurance must include: 

  (a) Premises and Operations Liability 

  (b) Blanket Contractual Liability 

  (c) Personal Injury 

  (d) Explosion, collapse and underground coverage 

  (e) Products/Completed Operations for 2 years after final payment 

  (f) Broad Form Property Damage including completed operations 

  (g) Independent Contractors coverage 

  (h) The general aggregate must apply separately to this project/location 

 2. BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE 

A. Limits - $250,000 each person/$500,000 each accident for Bodily Injury   

  and $100,000 for Property Damage OR $500,000 Combined Single Limit   

  for Bodily Injury and Property Damage each accident 

B. Must cover liability for "Any Auto" - including Owned, Non-Owned and   

  Hired Automobile Liability 

3. WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY - If required by 

 Wisconsin State Statute or any Workers Compensation Statutes of a different state. 

A. Must carry coverage for statutory Workers Compensation and Employers   

  Liability limit of: 

   $100,000 Each Accident 

Page 38 of 65



CC-25 

Page 18 

 

   $500,000 Disease Policy Limit 

   $100,000 Disease - Each Employee 

4. BUILDER’S RISK/INSTALLATION FLOATER 

A. City of Cedarburg will not assume responsibility for loss, including loss of  

  use, for damage to property, materials, tools, equipment, and items of a   

  similar nature which are being either used in the work being performed by   

  the contractor or are to be installed or erected by the contractor. 

  If coverage is desired for this exposure, the contractor may, at his own   

  cost, procure insurance to cover same. 

5. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

*  Additional Insured - On the General Liability Coverage, Comprehensive Automobile 

 Coverage and Umbrella Coverage. City of Cedarburg shall be Additional Insured. 

* Endorsement - The Additional Insured Policy endorsement must accompany the Certificate of 

 Insurance. 

*  Certificates of Insurance - A copy of the Certificate of Insurance must be on file with the City 

 Clerk. 

*  Notice - City of Cedarburg requires 30 day written notice of cancellation, non-renewal or 

 material change in the insurance coverage. 

*  The insurance coverage required must be provided by an insurance carrier with the 

 "Best" rating of "A-VII" or better. All carriers shall be admitted carriers in the State of 

 Wisconsin. 

 

 

        Adopted:  1/10/2005 

Page 39 of 65



Page 40 of 65



Page 41 of 65



Page 42 of 65



Page 43 of 65



Page 44 of 65



Page 45 of 65



Page 46 of 65



Page 47 of 65



Page 48 of 65



Page 49 of 65



Page 50 of 65



Page 51 of 65



Page 52 of 65



Page 53 of 65



Page 54 of 65



Page 55 of 65



Page 56 of 65



Page 57 of 65



Page 58 of 65



Page 59 of 65



Page 60 of 65



Page 61 of 65



Page 62 of 65



Page 63 of 65



  

    

  

  

  

  

SSTTAAFFFF  RREEPPOORRTT 

July 6, 2017 
 

 
 The following information is provided to keep the Common Council and staff informed on some of the activities and events of 

the City.  Points of clarification may be addressed during the City Administrator’s Report portion of the agenda; however, if 

discussion of any of these items is necessary, placement on a future Council agenda should be directed. 

 

 

Engineering/Public Works – The road program is moving along.  The concrete repair program began 

on Wednesday. 

 

The sink hole in the Library parking lot was repaired this week. 

 

The Public Works Department put in approximately 137 regular hours and 39 overtime hours before 

and after Strawberry Fest for preparation and cleanup. 

 

The open house for the Public Works facility was a great success. 

 

Parks, Recreation & Forestry – Mercury Marine donated $10,000 towards the 4
th

 of July fireworks. 

 

The Department had a foot darts fundraiser at Strawberry Fest.  $500 was raised. 

 

LaRosa Landscaping has asked to leave up the red shade sail in front of the Community Center Gym.  

The Landmarks Commission will discuss the request at the next meeting. 

 

The large amount of rain has resulted in increased grass cutting efforts. 

 

Library – Approximately 700 children, 200 teens, and 200 adults have registered for the Summer 

Reading program. These numbers far exceed last year’s participation. 

 

The Friends of the Library book sale will take place July 13, 14, and 15. 

 

Wastewater – Dennis Grulkowski was promoted to lead operator at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

  

 

 

 

  

Page 64 of 65



Page 65 of 65


	CC Agenda 07-10-17
	CC Min 06-27-17
	Blue Sheet - SEH Agreement
	SEH Agreement
	Blue Sheet - County Fair
	County Fair Attachments
	Blue Sheet - Friends of Library insurance request
	CC-25 Cert of Insurance
	Bills
	Staff Report 07-06-17
	Building Inspectors Report - June 2017



